
1 ('\'1

I
I

-
judges having the nationality of the parties".
The suggestion had not been adopted, but since
the text should be made complete. As regards the
United States representative's remark regarding
assessors, he had accepted assimilation to repre
sentatives of States only as a compromise, and he
still thought assessors should be assimilated to
judges. He had raised in the Sub-Committee the
same point as the representative of Egypt, but
he had made no further comment on being told
that the Registrar was to be assimilated to a
Director of the United Nations. It would perhaps
be useful to include in the report a wording to
the effect that the privileges and immunities
provided for the judges were those granted to
diplomatic envoys.

In view of the number of charjes suggested,
the CHAIRMAN proposed that a revised text of
the report should be prepared by the Rappor
teur and discussed at the next meeting.

Mr. FAHY (United States of America) then
asked that his observations regarding assessors
should be examined. If it were decided to as
similate r.ssessors to officials there would be no
need to change or arrlend the existing legisla
tion of the United States on immunities and
privileges.

. The CHAIRMAN asked the Rapporteur to sub
mit an amended report at a subsequent meet
ing, after consulting the various delegations
which had suggested amendments.

The meeting rose at 2 p.m.

TWENTY-THIRD MEETING

I-Ield at Lake Success, New York,
on Thursday, 28 November 1946, at 11.15 a.m.

[AjC.6j91]

Chairman: Mr. R. JIMENEZ (Panama).

59. Report of Sub-Committee 2 on the
ioint report of the Secretary-General
and the Negotiating Committee on
the interim arrangement on the privi
leges and immunities of the United
Nations concluded with the Swiss Fed
eral Council and on the agreement
concerning the Ariana site (documents
A/1751 and A/C.6/852

)

Mr. BEELAERTS VAN BLOKLAND (Nether
lands), Rapporteur of Sub-Committee 2, sub
mitted the Sub-Committee's report and ex
pressed his satisfaction with the results obtained.
He paid a tribute to the attitude of the Swiss
authorities.

Mr. CHAGLA (India) moved that the report
should be adopted.

1 See Annex 17.
2 See Annex 17a.

juges de la nationalite aes parties". Cette sug
gestion n'avait pas ete adoptee, mais puisque la
question est soulevee anouveau, il estime que le
texte doit etre complete. En ce qui concerne la
remarque du representant des Etats-Unis
d'Amerique relative aux assesseurs, M. Bartos
rappelle qu'il n~avait accepte l'assimilation aux
representants d'Etats, que comme un compromis,
et il estime toujours que les assesseurs devraient
ctre assimiles aux juges. M. Bartos avait sou
leve au sein de la sous-commission le meme point
que le representant de l'Egypte: mais il avait
abandonne ses observations sur la remarque qui
lui avait ete faite que le Greffier devait etre
assimile a un directeur des Nations Unies. 11
serait peut-ctre utile d'inserer dans le rapport un
texte precisant que les privileges et immunites

I prcvus pour les juges sont ceux accordcs aux
envoy'~s diplomatiques.

Etant donne le nombre des modifications sug
gcrees, Le PRESIDENT propose qu'un texte revise
du rappor~ soit prepare par le Rapporteur et
discute ala prochaine reunion.

M. FAHY (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) demande
alors qu'on examine egalement les observations
relatives aux assesseurs. Si, en effet, on decidait
d'assimiler les assesseurs a des fonctionnaires, on
eviterait des modifications et des amendements
a la legislation. actuelle des Etats-Unis sur les
immunites et les privileges.

Le PRESIDENT charge alors le Rapporteur de
presenter, au cours d'une prochaine seance, un
rapport amende apres consultation avec les dif
ferentes delegations qui ont suggere des amende
ments.

La seance est levee a 14 heures.

VINGT-TROISIEME SEANCE

Tenue cl Lake Success, New-York)
le jeudi 28 novembre 1946, cl 11 h. 15.

[AjC.6/91]

President: M. R. JIMENEZ (Panama).

59. Rapport de la Sous-Commission 2 sur
le rapport conioint du Secretaire gene
ral et du Comite de negociation con
cernant I'accord provisoire relatif
aux privileges et immunites des Na
tions Unies conclu avec le Conseil
federal suisse et I'accord concernant le
pare de l'Aricma (documents A/175 1

et A/C.6/85)2

M. BEELAERTS VAN BLOKLAND (Pays-Ba.s),
Rapporteur de la Sous-Commission 2, presente
le rapport de la Sous-Commission et se felicite
des resultats obtenus. Il rend hommage a l'atti
tude des autorites suisses.

M. CHAGLA (Inde ) propose formellement
l'adoption du rapport.

1 Voir Annexe 17.
?Voir Annexe 17a.



saIT,
(pa

I
prn
sho
imr
try

]

(In
difl
(S,
ace
as
fae
cC'l.

tra
1

su~

tht
fa<
ag
an
th

re21

Iv
pOlf;
was
don
chal

}"
be I
con
and
the
mer

3, b
dIee
enJo
mat:

th
ne
us
al
w
h:

al
tl

~
al

I tl
ti
0

n

ill
(

~'i r\'
" (l~ ,

r'
1
(

I

Les assesseurs pouvant ctre consideres comme
des experts, le rapport les a assimiIes, du point de
vue de leurs immunites, aceux-ci, mais pour bien
indiquer qu'ils etaient 'ces experts d'un type
special, ils ont fait l'objet d'une disposition a
part.

Le Rapporteur formule l'espoir que cette solu
tion, qui a ete approuvee par le representant des
Etats-Unis, donnera satisfaction au representant
de la Yougoslavie.

:LvI. SULTAN (Egypte) rappelle qu'il avait
signale une difference de redaction dans les
paragraphes 2 et 3 du rapport. 11 insiste sur la
necessite d'uniformiser le langage Jes deux para
graphes.

RIAD Bey (Arabie saoudite) appuie la pro
position du representant de l'Egypte. Il suggere
que 1'0n emploie au paragraphe 3, l'expression
"privileges et immunites diplomatiques", em-

1 Le projet de resolution contenu dans ce document qui
revise le document AjC.6/80 a ete adopte par l'Assemhlee
generale, lors de sa cinquante-cinquieme seance pleniere.
Voir les Resolutions adoptees par l'AssemblCe generale,
pendant la seconde partie de sa premiere session, page 176

En ce qui concerne la question des assesseurs,
soulevee par le repr,~sentant des Etats-Unis, le
Rapporteur declare qLl'il a consulte le President
de la Cour internationale de Justice et que ce
dernier lui a explique que l'ancicn Statut de la
Cour permanente de Justice internationalc pre
cisait que les asscsseurs devaient aider la Cour
dans des affaires de caractcre special, telles que
conflits de travail, etc. Le nouveau Statut a
supprime les dispositions relatives aux cas spc
ciaux, mais a neanmoins conserve les assesseurs.

60. Rappolt de la SousuCommission 2 sur
les privileges et immunih~s des mem
bres et des fonctionno~;es de la Cour
internationale de Justice (document
A/C.6/80/Rev.)1

M. BEELAERT3 VAN BLOKLAND (Pays-Bas),
Rapporteur de la Sous-Commission 2, presente
le nouveau texte de son rapport, en soulignant
que, tenant compte de l'amendement propose par
les representants de la Pologne et de la Norvege,
il a remplace les mots "membres de la Cour",
figurant au paragraphe 3, par le mot "juges".

. ~-•. _._ .. -~""'-"-"'---'--"'-'--~-

Decision: Le rapport est adopte a l'unani
mite. Le Rapporteur exprimera, dans son rap
port a l'Assemblee generale, la reconnaissance
des Nations Unies envers le ComiU de n.igoci'a
lion et le Gouvernement suisse.

M. FAHY (Etats-Unis d'Amerique)., appuye
par M. McKINNON WOOD (Royaume-Uni),
propose que la Commission presente des remer
ciements au Gouvernement suisse et au Comite
de negociation.

Un vote a lieu amains levees sur le rapport de
la Sous-Commission 2, avec l'addition proposcc.

Mr. FAHY (United States of America), sup
ported by ~1r. McKINNON WOOD (United King
dom) , proposed that the Committee should
place on record its gratitude to the Swiss Gov
ernment and to the Negotiating Committee.

The report of Sub-Committee 2, with the
addition proposed, was put to the vote by a show
of hands.

Decision: The report was adopted unan
imously. The Rapporteur was instructed to
express in his report to the General Assembly
the gratitude of the United Nations to the
Negotiating Committee and the Swiss Govern
ment.

60. Report of Sub-Committee 2 on prIvI
leges and immunities of members and
officials of the Internationul Court of
Justice (document A/C.6/80/Rev. 11

)

Mr. BEELAERTS VAN BLOKLAND (Nether
lands), Rapporteur of Sub-Committee 2, sub
mitted a new text of his report. He pointed out
that, in accordance with the amendment pro
posed by th", representatives of Poland and
Norway, he had replaced the words "members
of the Court" in paragraph 3 by the word
"judges".

As regards the question of assessors which had
been raised by the United States representative,
the Rapporteur stated that he had made en
quiries of the President of t.~e International
Court of Justice. The President had c.:"plained
that the Statute of the Permanent COUl't of
International Justice had made provision for
assessors, who were to serve as assistants in
special cases, such as conflicts arising in the
course of work, etc. The present Statute con
tained no clause relating to special cases, but
had prt;:;erved the assessors.

Inasmuch as the assessors could be regarded
as experts, the report had treated them as such
in matters of immunity; in order to show, how
ever, that they were experts of a special type,
a separate arrangement had been made for
them.

The Rapporteur hoped that such a solution,
which had been supported by the United States
representative, would meet with the approval
of the representative of Yugoslavia.

Mr. SULTAN (Egypt) recalled that he had
pointed out a drafting difference between para
graphs 2 and 3 of the report, and stressed that
uniformity ")f langu::tge in the two paragraphs
was desirable.

R.JAD Bey (Saudi Arabia) supported the
Egyptian proposal. He suggested that the term
used in paragraph 2, "diplo~atic privileges and
immunities," should be repeated in paragraph

1 The draft resolution contained in this document, which
revises document AjC.6/80, was adopted by the General
Assembly at its fifty-fifth plenary meeting. See Resolutions
adopted by the General Assembly during the second part
of its first session, page 176.1.

j

.,

.'

c' .
} ~

:1



109

· ,
, i

i,

3, but that a statement should be added to the
effect that the judges when travelling would
enjoy the facilities commonly extended to diplo
mats.

Mr. McKINNON WOOD (United Kingdom)
pointed out that the difference in phraseology
was contained in the proposals of the Interna··
tional Court of Justice. He saw no reason to
change paragraph 3.

!vIr. CHAUMONT (France) felt that it would
be logical to repeat the same tc"ms. Since in ac
cordance with paragraphs 3 and 4, the judges
and officials of the Court, when tr::welling on
the business of the Court, were to ~njoy treat
ment accorded to diplomats, then; was every
re~son why the judges should be accorded the
same privileges in their country of residence
(paragraph 2).

He suggested that the words "diplomatic
privileges and immunities" in paragraph 2
should be replaced by the words ·'privileges>
immu!1ities, and facilities accorded by the coun
try to diplomatic envoys."

In reply to a statement by Mr. CHAGLA
(India), who felt that there was no substantive
difference between the two texts, R1An Bey
(Saudi Arabia) pointed out that the facilities
accorded to diplomats were not the same thing
as diplomatic privileges and immunities. The
facilities constituted a form of international
cC'urtesy, accorded to the judges solely when
travelling, whereas diplomatic privileges· and im-

unities were a matter of international law. He
suggested the replacement in paragraph 3 of
the phrase "all the privileges, immunities and
facilities granted by these countries to diplomatic
agents" by the phrase "diplomatic privileges
and immunities and the facilities granted by
these countries to diplomatic envoys."

11r. KER~O (Assistant Secretary-General)
thought that the report should remain unaltered,
not only because it followed the terminology
used by the International Court of Justice, but
also because that terminology was in conformity
with the general and special conventions which
had betn approved in London.

He stated that the privileges and immnnities
accorded to the judges resident in certain coun
tries were the same as those accorded to the duly
accredited members of the diplomatic corps in
those countries, whereas the privileges, immuni
ties and facilities granted to judges in the course
of their travels were those granted to all the
members of the diplomatic corps.

Mr. HAMBRO (Registrar of the International
Court of Justice) thanked the Committee for its
respect of the terms used by the International
Court of Justice, but pointed out that the mem
bers of the Court would certainly not be
offended by the adoption of the French amend
ment, inasmuch as their position would be im
proved thereby. They would thus have the same
privileges as those granted to the Secretary-

\

pIeyee au paragraphe 2, mais d'ajouter toutefois
que les juges en voyage jouiront des facilites
accordees aux agents diplomatiques.

M. McKINNON WOOD (Royaume-Uni) releve
que 1'0n peut retrouver ceUe difference de lan
gage dans les propositions de la Cour interna
tionale de Justice. Il ne voit aucune raison de
modifier le paragraphe 3.

M. CHAUMONT (France) estime qu'il serait
logique d'employer les memes termes. Il considere
que si les juges et les fonctionnaires de la Cour en
voyage pom' les besoins de la Cour doivent bene
fker, aux termes des paragraphes 3 et 4, du
traitement accorde aux agents diplomatiques, a
plus forte raison les juges dans les pays de leur
residence (paragraphe 2) doivent en beneficier.

11 propose que le paragraphe 2 contienne, au
lieu des mots "des privileges et immunites diplo
matiques", les mots "des privileges, immunites
et facilites accordes dans ce pays aux agents diplo
matiques".

En reponse a M. CUAGLA (lnde), qui estime
qu'il n'y a aucune difference aP.. fond entre les
deux textes, RIAD Bey (Arabic saoudite) pre
cise que les facilites accordees aux agents diplo
matiques et les privileges et immunites diplo
matiques ne sont pas la meme chose. Les facilites
constituent une forme de courtoisie interna
tionale, accordce seulement aux juges au cours
de leurs voyages tandis que les privileges et immu
nites diplomatiques relevent du domaine du droit
international. Il propose de rcmplacer dans le
paragraphe 3, la phrase "de l'ensemble des privi
leges, immunites et facilites accordes dans ces
p3.ys aux agents diplomatiques" par la phrase
des "privileges et immunites diplomatiques et
des facilites accordees dans ces pays aux agents
diplomatiques".

11. KERNO (Secretaire general adjoint) estime
que le rapport devlait demeurer inchange, non
seulement parce qu'il reproduit ~es termes em
ployes par la Cour internationale de Justice,
mais parce que le langage uti.lise est conforme
a celui des conventions generales et speciales qui
ont ete approuvees aLondres.

En efIet, les privileges et immunites accordes
aux juges residant clans certains pays sont ceux
qui son.t accordes par ces memes pays aux mem
bres du corps diplomatique accredites aupres
d'eux, tandis que les privileges, immunites et
facilites accordes aux juges en voyage, sont ceux
qui sont accordes aux agents diplomatiques en

, , 1genera.

M. HAMBRo (Greffier de la Cour interna
tionale de Justice) remercie les membres de la
consideration qu'ils apportent aux termes em
ployes par la Cour internationale de Justice,
mais il releve que si l'amendement fran~ais etait
adopte, les membres de la Cour ne s'en offen
seraient certainement pas puisque leur situation
serait amelioree. De cette fa~on, ils auraient les
memes privileges que l'article 19 de la Conven-



. . ...
• .4. ' ' ...... . I '/ 0,' : ~ • '.). .' .. <. " ..'.. • •. ' .' • ~ ' • ~ /' • , • • • " ',~

\' .'. '.' .' ( •. '/ • '. a':; . ,. " . '.. '., l' • • •

, .

which
the Co
deliben
right t~

those I
from t]

The
in Eur
tion th
pating
vote w
in seveJ

Mr.
by the
on the
status I

Mr.
the Frc
lar WO)

Mr.
the de'

Av
represt:
of han

Dee
unantr

Mr.
of the
of the
failed
amend

Av
hands.

De~

the RI
motlsl:

61- 1
(I
j

Mr
of ger
in the
called
genoc
of pe]
classif

~ Mr1:
fr arguI1
W
.f wishe
Si
l not b
t: Wad,1
~

il Amer
" lutior"?

reaSOl

I
ticula
at t]

I
Ame]
perse

I
1 Se<
2 Se

M. BARTOS (Yougoslavie) releve qu'en ce qui
concerne les assesseurs, il ne partage pas l'opinion
du President de la Cour internationale de
Justice, telle qu'elle a ete exprimee par le Rap
porteur.

A son avis, un assesseur n'est pas un expert.
M. Bartos base son opinion sur le paragraphe 2
de l'Article 30 du Statut et sur une disposition
explicite du rcglement, qui prevoient taus deux

M. KHOURY (Liban) appuie l'amendement
fran~ais. 11 estime que les explications fournies
par M. Kerno sont tres satisfaisantes, mais il
desirerait apporter plus de precision aux termes
"privileges et immunites diplomatiques".

tion generale accorde au Secrctaire general et
aux Secretaires generaux adjoints des Nations
Vnies.

M. CHAUMONT (France) ne partage pas
l'avis de M. Kerno sur la difference de traite-

I ment qu'il y aurait lieu d'accorder aux juges resi
dant dans certains pays et aux juges \.;n voyage.
11 prie la Commission d'adopter sa proposition,
non seulement par courtoisie pour les juges, mais
aussi par simple logique.

M. KERNO (Secretaire general adjoint) fait ob·
server qu'une erreur d'interpretation a cause un
malentendu ace s~jet.

~1. FAHY (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) ne voit
pas de raison pour modifier le texte et considere
que, si l'on doit y apporter un changement, il
vandrait mieux restreindre les privileges plutot
que de les etendre. En effet, le Statut et la
Charte parlent des privileges et immunites mais
non des facilite~. Le texte soumis al'approbation
de la Commission accorde aux juges tous les
privileges qu'il est possible de leur conferer.

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) estime que la
Cour a sans doute bien considere toute la question
'et a demande tous les privileges qu'elle voulait se
voir accorder. Le rapport lui donne entiere satisw
faction 3ur ce point.

n voudrait attirer l'attention de la Commis
sion sur le fait qu'rll lui accordant d[WaUl:age,
on risque de rendfle, pour certains Etats, la rati
fication de la Convention plus difficile. Certains

I parlements, notamment le parlement belge
eprouveraient !~~s difficultes a legiferer cur les
recommandations .:.': des principes nouveaux y
etaient apportes.

11 suggere, en consequence, de laisser le texte
des recommandations inchange.

RIAD Bey (Arabie saoudite) precise que la
modification qu'il avait proposee n'avait pas
d'autre but que de clarifier le texte.

Il estime comme M. ARROSA (Vruguay) , que
toutes les observations et expIications qui ont ete
presentees doivent etre consignees au rapport qui
sera fait a l'Assemblee generale. Il retire son
amendement.

General and Assistant Secretaries-General of the
United Nations under Article 19 of the Conven
tion on the Privileges and Immunities of the
United Nations.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) did not agree with
Mr. Kerno regarding the different treatment
accorded to judges resident in certain countries
and to judges in the course of travel. He urged
the Committee to approve his proposal not only
out of courtesy to the judges, but ou~ of regard
for ordinary logic.

1'1r. KERNO (Assistant Secretary-General) ob
served that an error of interpretation had led to
a misunderstanding on that point.

Mr. FAHY (United States of America) saw
no reason to modify the text. If a change had
to be made, he felt that privileges should be
restricted rather than extended. The Statute of
the Court, in fact, mentioned privileges and im
munities for the judges, but no facilities. The
text which had been submitted to the Committee
accorded to the judges all the privileges which
could be conferred upon them.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) held that the
Court must have considered the whole question
thoroughly and had requested all the privileges
which it desired. He was in entire agreement
with the report on that point.

He wished to call to the attention of the Com
mittee the fact that the granting of additional
benefits might create difficulties in the ratifica
tion of the Convention by certain States. Cer
tain parliaments, in particular that of Belgium,
might find it difficult !o ratif) the Convention
if it contained new principles.

He suggested accordingly that the text of the
recommendations should remain unaltered.

RIAD BEY (Saudi Arabia) said that the sole
purpose of the modification proposed by him
had been to clarify the text.

He shared the opinion of Mr. ARRosA
(Uruguay) that all the observations and ex
planations which had l-)een made on the matter
should be included in the report submitted to the
General Assembly. He withdrew his amend
ment.

Mr. KHOURY (Lebanon) supported the
French amendment. He stated that he found
Mr. Kerno's explanations fully satisfactory, but
that he would like the term "diplomatic privi
leges and immuI1ities" rephrased in a more pre
cise manner.

Mr. BARTOS (Yugoslavia) remarked that his
opinion as regards the assessors dIffered from
that of the President of the International Court
of Justice, as it had been expressed by the
Rapporteur.

,He ·considered an assessor an adviser and not
an expert. He based his opinion on paragraph
2 of Article 30 of the Statute and on an explicit
provision in the rules of procedure, both of

d,

"

',I';,.'

!
J
~}

',,1

1

:.,'.! :

; .;

i

1
":,
~ :

l



'.' ..'; . :'~~' .'. .":" ....;.. ' . ... .' ·.r . . ".'. : ..... .

. . -. " . . . . . . .' '" . , '- .

-

1 11

which provided that the assessors would sit at
the Court and that they would take part in the
deliberations. Although they did not have the
right to vote, they fulfilled functions similar to
those performed by judges and quite different
from those performed by experts.

The representative of Yugoslavia recalled that
in European law concerning judicial organiza
tion the function of professional judges partici
pating in deliberations but having no right to
vote was well known. Assessors were employed
in several colonial courts also.

Mr. Bartos did not oppose the text prepared
by the Ro,pporteur, but he made reservations
on the comments that had been made on th~

status of the assessors.

Mr. SULTAN (Egypt) supported the text of
the French amendment which provided for simi
lar wording in paragraphs 2 and 3.

Mr. CHAGLA (India) moved the closure of
the debate.

A vote on the point of order raised by the
representative of India was taken by a show
of hands.

Decision: The closure of the debate was
unanimously adopted.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) stated that in view
of the opinions expressed by the Committee and
of the constitutional considerations which he had
failed to take into account, he withdrew his
amendment.

A vote on the report was taken by a show of
hands.

Decision: The draft resolution proposed by
the Rapporteur of Sub-Committee 2 was unani
mously adopted.

61. The crime of genocide (continuation)
(documents A/BUR/50, A/C.6/831 and
A/C.6/862

)

Mr. YEPES (Colombia) considered the crime
of genocide one of the most important problems
in the codification of international law. He re
called that the Niirnberg Tribunal had defined
genocide as systematic extermination of a group
of persons, and had pointed out the necessity of
classifying it as a crime at intemationallaw.

Mr. Yepes deemed it useless to add other
arguments to those already expressed but he
wished to call attention to a precedent that had
not been mentioned. The countries of the New
World had, at several conferences of the Pan
American Union, approved a number of reso
lutions expressly condemning persecutions for
reasons of language, race, or religion. In par
ticular, the resolution adopted before the war,
at the Eighth International Conference of
Americ'1t'l States at Lima, had declared that
persecutions were contrary to the political and

1 See Annex I5a.
2 See Annex I5b.

que les assesseurs siegent a la Cour et qu'ils
prennent part aux deliberations. Quoique
n'ayant pas le droit de vote, ils remplissent des
fonctions similaires a celles des juges et bien
differentes de celles des experts.

Le representant de la Yougoslavie rappelle
que dans l'organisation judiciaire en droit euro
peen, la fonction des juges profrssionnels qui par
ticipent aux deliberations sans droit de vote est
bien connue. Des assesseurs font aussi partie de
plusieurs cours colonial~s.

M. Bartos ne s'oppose pas au texte prepare pas
le Rapporteur, mais il fait des reserves relative
ment au commentaire qui a ete fait sur le statut
des assesseurs.

M. SULTAN (Egypte) appuie le texte de
l'amendement fran~ais qui rend uniforme le lan
gage des paragraphes 2 et 3.

M. CHAGLA (Inde) dcmande la cloture du
debate

Un vote a lieu a mains levees sur le point
d'ordre souleve par le representant de l'Inde.

Decision: La motion de clature est adoptee a
['unanimite.

M. CHAUMOl r: (France) declare qu'en raison
de l'opinion eXF r' ':e par la majorite de la Com
mission, et pOUf r: ~ motifs constitutionnels qu'il
avait perdus de ,',l\~, il retire son amendement.

On procede a un vote a mains levees sur le
rapport.

Decision: Le projet de resolution propose par
le Rapporteur de la Sous-Commission 2 est
adopte a l'unanirtdte.

61. Le crime de genocide (documents
A/BUR/50, A/C.6/831 et A/C.6/86)2
(suite)

NI. YEPES (Colombie) considere que le crime
de genocide est un des problemes les plus im
portants de la codification du droit international.
Il rappelle que le Tribunal de Nuremberg avait
defini le genocide comme l'extermination syste
matique d'un groupe de personnes et qu'il a
montre la necessite de le classer parmi les crimes
de droit international.

M. Yepes estime inutile d'ajouter d'autres
arguments a ceux deja exprimes, mais il desire
mettre en relief un antecedent qui n'a pas ete
mentionne. Les pays du Nouveau-Monde, au
cours de plusieurs conferences de l'Union pan
americaine, ont approuve plusieurs resolutions
condamnant expressement les persecutiOllS pour
des raiso;lls de langue, de race ou de religion.
Une resolution adoptee avant la guerre, a la
huitieme conference internationale des Etats
americains, declarait que les persecutions sont
contrairer au syste~e politique et juridique du

1 Voir Annexe 15a.
2 Voir Annexe I5b.

"

f

! !



I

In
no 01
along
had ;:
an 11

genae
ment
the Cl

and t

Th
tain 2

comrr
proto l

genoc
that f
tain ;:
and r
shoull
to all'

The
that 1
ments
staten
dition
establ

Ria
be de'
to ag:
dealin
mitte(
whicb
ment

on J

C

62.

11
lettcr
Thin
tce 1
draft
anno
the :
Corn

, '

1:

63.

r M
& text,
! on t

95 1 '
I

Ai
cons

1 SI

Passant en revue les amendements proposes
par certaines delegations, Riad Bey releve que
l'amendement fran~ais constitue une legere
variante de l'amendement britannique et qu'il
serait preferable de 1'adopter. En ce qui con
cerne 1'amendement de 1'Inde, il constitue la
consequence naturelle de la constatation du fait
que le genocide est un crime international et
l'AssemblCe generale tire sa competence, pour
prendre les mesures envisagees par ledit amende
ment, des Articles 10 et 13 de la Charte.

Le representant de la Colombie releve que ce
precedent illustre 1'esprit humanitaire et liberal
des nations qui ont participe a cette conference.

I Nouveau ~ionde et a condamne les persecutions
pour motifs racianx ou religieux. Celles-ci ont
rendu la vie impossible acertaines minorites.

RIAD Bey (Arabie saoudite) estime que la
Sixieme Commission doit examiner la question
du genocide du point de vue juridique.

Il releve que le genocide est un mot nouveau
qui a ete employe pour la premiere fois par le
professeur Lemkin dans son ouvrage intitule "Le
regne de l'Axe dans l'Europe occupee". Le pro
fesseur Lemkin a mis en relief que l'idee qui se
trouve a la base de ce crime a existe depuis le
debut de l'humanite.

Riad Bey est d'avis que, d~ meme que l'on a
condamne la guerre d'agression au nom des
nrincipes des droits de l'homme, il faut con
damner le genocide en vertu des memes princi
pes. Il demande a la Commission de soumettre
la question du crime de genocide a l'Assemblee
generale avec une formule de condamnation;
car tout delai destine a faire une etude plus ap
profondie de la question ou a renvoyer celle-ci
a une sous-commission, pourrait impliquer qu'il
existe un leger dc~te dans l'esprit de certains
membres, alors que la Commission est unanime
sur le principe meme du crime et de sa con
damnation.

D'un point de vue strictement juridique, Riad
Bey estime qu'il faut d'abord se dema.nder si le ge
nocide reunit les conditions requises pour qu'il y
ait crime international. Il rappelle que ces con
ditions sont les suivantes: 1) le crime doit avoir
cte commis sur le territoire de divers Etats;
2) il doit presenter une certaine importance inter-

I
nationale, soit materielle, soit morale; 3) il doit
porter une atteinte profonde aux principes de la
justice et du respect de la dignite humame.

D'apres lui, toutes ces conditions sont reunies
dans le genocide et il appartient a la Commis
sion de le proclamer crime international.

Afin qu'on ne vienne pas soutenir que la simple
declaration de la Sixieme Commission ne suffit
pas aqualifier le genocide de crime international,
Riad Bey propose que la Commission declare
avoir constate que les conditions requises sont
remplies.

In order to avoid any argument to the effect
that a simple declaration by the Sixth Com
mittee was not sufficient to give to genocide the
status of an international crime, Riad Bey pro
posed that the Ccmmittee should declare that
it had verified that the required conditions had
been fulfilled.

Riad Bey believed that just as wars of aggres
sion had been condemned as violating the prin
ciples of the rights of man, so genocide should
be condtmned as a violation of the same prin
ciples. He urged the Committee to submit the
question of the crime of genocide to the General
Assembly by means of a formula condemning
that crime, since if the Committee asked for the
question to be postponed for fuller study or to
be sent to a sub-committee, it might be implied
that there was some doubt in the minds of cer
tain members, even though the Committee was
unanimous on the principle that genocide was a
crime which should be condemned.

From a strictly legal point of view, Riad Bey
thought that it was necessary to ascertain
whether genocide fulfilled the conditions of an
international crime. He recalled that the condi
tions were the following: (1) the crime must
have been committed on the territory of several
States; (2) it must have a certain international
importance, either material or moral; (3) it
must be a serious offence against the principles
of justice and respect for human dignity.

In his opinion genocide fulfilled all of those
conditions and the Committee should declare it
an international crime.

Reviewing the amendments proposed by cer
tain delegations, Riad Bey pointed out that the
French amendment constituted a slight variation
from the United Kingdom amendment and it
would be preferable to adopt the former. The
Indian amendment was the natural result of the
recognition of the fact that genocide was an in
ternational crime, and the General Assembly's
competence to take the measures provided in
the said amendment could be found in Articles
10 and 13 of the Charter.

judicial system of the New World, and had
condemned persecutions carried out for racial
and religious reasons, which had made life im
possible for certain minorities.

The representative of Colombia pointed out
-.:hat that precedent illustrated the liberal and
humanitarian spirit of the nations which had
taken part in the conference.

RJAD Bey (Saudi Arabia) thought that the
Sixth Committee ought to examine the question
of genocide from a legal point of view.

He noted that genocide was a new word
which had been used for the first time by Pro
fessor Lemkin in his work entitled "A.xis Rule
in Occupied Europe." Professor Lemkin had
shown that the idea behind this crime had ex
isted since the beginning of the human race.

I:
i

:1
"

I

I
i

!, I
I,



I

I
j
I ,

[

r

I
I
I

"-
The representative of Saudi Arabia proposed

that the combined textcs of the three amend
ments should be adopted, with an additional
statement to the effect that the existence of con
ditions constituting international crime had been
established.

Riad Bey pointed out that the problem might
be developed still further. It would be desi~ble

to agree to a protocol similar to the Protocols
dealing with narcotics and piracy. He sub
mitted to the Committee the broad outlines
which should serve as a basis for the establish
ment of such a protocol (document A/C.6/86).

The preamble of the protocol ought to con
tain a formal declaration condemning atrocities
committed against humanity. As regards the
protocol itself, it ought to contain a definition of
genocide, with an enumeration of all the acts
that fell within that definition. It ought to con
tain also provisions for assuring the prevention
and repression of genocide. Finally, the protocol
should establish the competence of each State
to outlaw and to punish genocide. '

In conclusion, Riad Bey stated that there was
no obstacle to the Committee's taking action
along the following lines: it should state that it
had ascertained that the conditions constituting
an international crime had been fulfilled by
genocide; it should accept the Indian amend
ment; and it should make plans with a view to
the adoption of a protocol for the prevention
and the repression of the crime of genocide.

The meeting rose at 1.30 p.m.

T''''Ef\lTY-FOURTH MEET;NG

Held at Lake Success, New York,
on Friday, 29 November 1946, at 11.20 a.m.

.-[A/C.26/96]

Chairman: lvrr. R. JIMENEZ (Panama).

62. Additions to the agenda of the Sixth
Committee

:rvfr. LIAl'\G (Committee Secretary) read a
lettcr from the Chairman of thc Joint Second and
Third Committec. refcrring to the Sixth Commit
tee the examination of ccrtain articles of the
draft agreement lvith spccialized agencies. He
announced that the matter would be placed upon
the agcnda of the next meeting of the Sixth
Committee.

63. The crime of genocide (continuation)

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) refured to the new
text of his amendnlent to the draft resolution
on the crime of genocide (document A/C.61
95 1).

At first he had had doubts, based on legal
considerations, as to the wording of the amend-

1 Sec Annex 15e.

I1 propose d'adopter les trois amendements
dans une seule et meme formule en y ajoutant
la constatation de l'existence des conditions con
stitutives du crime" international.

Riad Bey signale ensuite que l'on devrait fran
chiI' une autre etape et aboutir ~. la conclusion
d'un protocole dans le genre de~; Protocoles rela
tifs au trafic des stupefiants et au crime de pira
tcrie. 11 soumet a la Commission les grandes
lignes qui devraient servir de base a l'etablisse
ment de ce protocole (document A/C.6/86) .

Le preambule du protocole devrait contenir
une declaration formelle des atrocites commises
contre 1'humanite. Quant au protocole lui
Ineme, il devrait contenir une definition du
genocide, avec l'enumeration de tous les actes
qui devraient etre consideres comme tels. Il
devrait egalement contenir les dispositions des
tinees a assurer la prevention et la repression du
genocide. Le protocole devra entin etablir la
competence de chaque Etat pour interdire et
punir le genocide.

En conclusion, Riad Bey declare que rien
n'empcche la Commission d'affirmer qu'elle a
constate que le genocide remplit les conditions
rcquises pour etre qualifie de crime international,
qu~elle accepte l'amendement de l'Inde et qu'elle

I envisage les dispositions aprendre pour arriver a
, la signature d'un protocole pour la prevention et

la repression du crime de genocide.

La seance est levee a 13 h. 30.

V~NGT-QUATRIEME SEANCE

Tenue aLake Success, New-York,
le vendredi 29 novembre 1946, a11 h. 20.

[A.jC.6j96]

President: M. R. JIMENEZ (Panama).

62. Additions Ca I'ordre du iour de la
Sixieme Commission

1\1. LIANG (Secretaire de la Commission)
donne lecture d'une lettre du President de la
Commission mixte des Deuxieme et Troisieme
Commissions, renvoyant a la Sixieme Commis
sion l'examen de certains articles des projets de
convention avec les institutions specialisees. n
annonce q':" les questions ainsi renvoyees seront
inscrites al'ordre du jour des prochaines seances
de la Sixieme Commission.

63. Le crime de genocide (suite)

M. CHAUMONT (France) presente quelques
observations sur le nouveau texte de son amende
ment au pro jet de resolution relative au crime
de genocide (document AjC.6/951

) •

11 declare qu'il avait eu, a l'origine, des
doutes d'ordre juridique en ce qui concerne la

1 Voir Annexe 15e.


